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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS

8§
8§
Plaintiff 8§
8§
3
8§
v 8§
g Case Number
8§
3
Defendant S

NOTICE AND ELECTION REGARDING CONSENT TO PROCEED
BEFORE A UNITED STATES MAGISTRATE JUDGE

In accordance with the provisions of 28 U.S.C. § 636(c), the undersigned notifies the clerk that

Party Name Party Role (Plaintiff or Defendant)

waives the right to proceed before a district judge of the United States District Court and
consents to

have a United States magistrate judge conduct any and all further proceedings, including any trial, and
order entry of a final judgment.
acknowledges the availability of a United States magistrate judge to try this case or rule on

dispositive motions but chooses not to consent to proceed before the magistrate judge.

Signature:

Date:

Bar Number (if attorney):

Telephone Number:

E—mail Address:

NOTE: A district judge or a magistrate judge will not be informed of any party's election unless all
parties have consented to the reassignment of the matter to a magistrate judge.
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TRIALS BY THE UNITED STATES MAGISTRATE JUDGE

In accordance with 28 U.S.C. 8§ 636(c)(1) and Fed. R. Civ. P. 73(b), upon consent of all parties in a
civil case, the district judge may enter an order reassigning the civil case to a magistrate judge.
Miscellaneous Order No. 6 of the Northern District of Texas provides that it is the plaintiff's obligation
to attach a copy of this notice to the complaint and summons, when served.

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO CONSENT TO PROCEED BEFORE
A UNITED STATES MAGISTRATE JUDGE

The Court has experienced, competent, and hard-working magistrate judges who are available to try
jury and non—jury civil cases pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 636(c). Consent to proceedings before a
magistrate judge may allow you to expedite the handling of your case.

You may consent to the exercise of civil jurisdiction over your case by a magistrate judge. If all parties
involved in your case consent, the presiding district judge may reassign your case to a magistrate judge.

Your decision to consent to the reassignment of your case to a magistrate judge, or not to consent, is
entirely voluntary and without any adverse consequences if you choose not to consent. Your decision
should be communicated to the clerk of the district court using Notice and Election Regarding Consent
to Proceed Before a United States Magistrate Judge form. A district judge or magistrate judge will not
be informed of any party's decision unless all parties have consented to the reassignment of the matter
to a magistrate judge.

Even if all parties consent to the exercise of civil jurisdiction by a magistrate judge, the district judge
may choose not to enter an order reassigning the case to a magistrate judge. However, if the district
judge reassigns your case to the magistrate judge, the magistrate judge is then authorized to conduct
any or all proceedings in the case, including a jury or non—jury trial, and order the entry of a final
judgment. Upon entry of judgment by the magistrate judge in any case transferred under 28 U.S.C. 8
636(c)(1), 28 U.S.C. § 636(c)(3) provides that "an aggrieved party may appeal directly to the
appropriate United States court of appeals from the judgment of the magistrate judge in the same
manner as an appeal from any other judgment of a district court.”

IMPORTANT NOTE: This submission is not treated as a filing in ECF, so the consent form will not
appear on the docket sheet.
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U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Texas
Instructions to a Non—Prisoner Pro Se Plaintiff

Your suit HORTON V. 360 DIGITAL MARKETING LLC was filed on 4/11/2025 and has been assigned to
the Honorable Ada E. Brown, case number 3:25—cv—-00907-F-BT.

These instructions do not include everything you need to know to pursue your case, but following them may
help you avoid common mistakes that can result in delay or other consequences-including dismissal of you
case.

1. Filing Procedures — The Local Civil Rules include the following requirements:

¢ After you have filed your complaint, unless you are excused for cause or the presiding judge
directs otherwise, you must:

O register as an Electronic Case Files (ECF) user within 14 days (you may register
online via our website at www.txnd.uscourts.gov), and

¢ file any pleading, motion, or other paper electronically.

¢ You must submit a judge's copy (a paper copy) of any document you file, even if you filed
the original electronically.

¢ If you electronically file a document, follow the procedures set forth in the ECF
Administrative Procedures Manual to provide the judge with the judge's copy.

¢ If you file a document on paper and want a file—stamped copy returned to you,
submit the original, the judge’'s copy, and an extra copy to be returned to you, and
provide a self-addressed, postage—paid envelope. The clerk cannot make an extra
copy for you unless you first pay a fee of 50 cents per page.

¢ You must type or legibly handwrite your documents on one side of numbered pages. Any
exhibit or discovery material attached to the filing must be referred to in the filing. Any
exhibit or discovery material not referred to in your filing or not attached to your filing may
be returned to you.

2. Address Change - You must notify the Court if your address changes, or your case may be
dismissed. If you are an ECF user, follow the procedures in the ECF Administrative Procedures
Manual to update your address. If you are not an ECF user, promptly file a written change of addres
notice in your case.

3. Rules to Follow — You must read and follow the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure (FRCP), this
court's Local Civil Rules, and the orders entered by a judge in your case.

4. Request for Attorney — In a civil case, you generally are not entitled to a court-appointed attorney
to represent you without cost to you. If you request a court—appointed attorney, a judge will decide
whether to appoint an attorney depending on the circumstances of the case. Even if the court decide
to appoint an attorney, the attorney cannot be forced to accept the appointment. You may call the
Lawyer Referral Service of the State Bar of Texas at (800) 252-9690 for assistance in securing the
services of a private attorney to represent you for a fee.

5. Initial Case Review — If the Court grants leave to proceed in forma pauperis, service of process will
be withheld pending review of your complaint, and your complaint may be dismissed pursuant to 28
U.S.C. § 1915(e)(2).

6. Copies to Defendant — After a defendant has been served your complaint in compliance with FRCP
4, you must serve a copy of any other document you file upon the defendant's attorney (or upon the
defendant, if the defendant is pro se) as required by FRCP 5. If you and the opposing side are both
ECF users, the ECF system will complete service for you, and a Certificate of Service is not requirec
If either of you is not an ECF user, or if you learn that service sent through ECF did not reach the
person, you must serve the document by other means and include a Certificate of Service or file one
within a reasonable time after service. Sample language for a Certificate of Service is:
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¢ On (Date) | filed_(the "foregoing document” or Document Name) with the clerk of court for
the U.S. District Court, Northern District of Texas. | hereby certify that | have served the

document on all counsel and/or pro se parties of record by a manner authorized by Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure 5 (b)(2).

Signature

7. Discovery Materials — Do not file discovery materials with the clerk. If you file a motion to compel
discovery, you may attach only the portions of discovery that are relevant to your motion.

8. Questions About Your Case — The court's website at www.txnd.uscourts.gov provides valuable
information. Do not write letters to the judge asking questions about your case — all communication
with the judge should be through filings. Do not write letters to the clerk asking for instructions on
how to handle your case, since the clerk is prohibited from giving legal advice.
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS

DALLAS DIVISION
LUCAS HORTON, §
Plaintiff, §
§

v 5 3-25CV 0907 -E

§
360 Digital Marketing, LLC §
Defendant. §

COMPLAINT

Plaintiff Lucas Horton (“Plaintiff”) brings this Complaint against 360 Digital Marketing, LLC
(“Defendant”) for various reasons. First, is their practice of sending unwanted texts to
consumers without their express written consent and even after the Plaintiff clearly indicated
he did not want to be texted. Second, is the Defendant’s practice of texting consumers who are
the National Do Not Call List using an ATDS, Third, is their practice of sending texts out despite
having already settled two previous complaints for the same types of texts. Fourth, is to obtain
damages and other redress caused by Defendant’s conduct. Plaintiff, for his Complaint, alleges
as follows upon personal knowledge as to himself and his own acts and experiences, and, as to
all other matters, upon information and belief.

JURISDICTION & VENUE

The Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant Texas Business and
Commerce Codes 305.053 (“TX 305”), as well as 28 U.S.C. § 1331, as the main actions arise under
the Telephone Consumer Protection Act 47 U.S.C. § 227(b)(1)(A), and 47 US.C. §
227(c)(3){F){‘'TCPA’), both of which provide for separate private rights of action. Plaintiff also
makes claims under § 64.1200(d). The Court has personal jurisdiction because both parties

reside in Dallas County, which is also where the offenses occurred.
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PARTIES
Plaintiff is an individual who resides in Dallas County, Texas. Defendant is a corporation
incorporated and existing under the laws of the State of Texas whose primary place of
business, corporate headquarters, and Registered Agent, Salman Yousuf, is located at 1910
Pacific Ave, #8025, Dallas, TX 75201 according the most recent filing with the Texas Secretary
of State.
FACTS
TX 305.053 states that, “ (a) A person who receives a communication that violates 47
U.S.C. Section 227, a regulation adopted under that provision, or Subchapter A may bring
an action in this state against the person who originates the communication for: $500 for
each violation; or... If the court finds that the defendant committed the violation
knowingly or intentionally, the court may increase the amount of the award of damages
under Subsection (b) to not more than the greater of: $1,500 for each violation;”.
It is a violation of Section 227(c) to make or transmit a telephone solicitation to any
person who is a subscriber to the do not call registry. 47 U.S.C. 227(c)(3)(F). Individuals
have a private right to action “to recover for actual monetary loss from such a violation,
or to receive up to $500 in damages for each such violation, whichever is greater .. . .” 47
U.S.C. 227(c)(5)(B). If the Court finds that the defendant's violation was committed

willfully or knowingly, the Court may treble plaintiffs award. 47 U.S.C. 227(c) (5).

47 U.S.C. § 227(b)(1)(A) states that, “It shall be unlawful for any person within the United
States, or any person outside the United States if the recipient is within the United States
- to initiate any telephone call to any residential telephone line using an ATDS without

the prior express consent of the called party.
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10.

11.

12,

47 CFR 64.1200(d)(1) requires that Defendant have a written telemarketing policy; they do not.
64.1200(d) also requires training of employees in avoiding texting or calling consumers on the Do
Not Call List. They obviously don’t do that. The statute also requires that the sender identify
who is texting in the body of the text. You have to click the generic link in the texts to see who is

behind the texts.

Plaintiff is the owner and customary user of a cellphone number ending in 9931

and has been on the National DNC list since 2011.

At no time did Plaintiff ever provide his cellphone number to Defendant or provide Defendant,
or any of Defendant’s agents or 3" party marketers, with any kind of written or verbal prior
express consent to text him.

Prior to receiving the texts, Plaintiff had no relationship with Defendant, had never provided his
telephone number directly to Defendant, and had never requested that Defendant or any of its
proxies to place text to him or to offer him any services.

On 5/10/21, Plaintiff filed a complaint in small claims, cause # JS21-00143D, for texts he had
received from the Defendant prior to that. The Defendant ended up settling and the Plaintiff
dismissed the case on 6/2/21, yet the Defendant continued to text the Plaintiff 25 more times.
On 11/2022, the Plaintiff filed another lawsuit against the Defendant for those 25 texts, case
no. 3:22-cv-02475-E-BN, which was ignored. The Plaintiff obtained a judgment against 360,
domesticated it in to District Court, and served them again with a Post judgment Discovery
request. It was ignored as well and the Plaintiff filed a motion to compel.

Once a hearing was set on the motion to compel, 360 finally agreed to pay the judgment.
However, that entire time, 360 had been sending texts to the Plaintiff despite knowing he
didn’t want to be texted enough to file 2 lawsuits against them.

It was not until after the Plaintiff had domesticated a Federal Judgment in District Court




Case 3:25-cv-00907-E-BT Document 3  Filed 04/11/25 Page 4 of 10 PagelD 8

and served the Defendant with a notice of post judgment discovery that the texts stopped.
13. Plaintiff was texted by:

833-448-18070 on 2/10/23 - vortex ghostwriting - 888-214-0979

833-941-3822 on 5/5/23 - ghostwritingly - 877-407-2444

855-338-0484 on 12/5/23 — wordsmith. replied stop — 469-942-8886. self-identified

855-729-6036 on 12/26/23 — fortune ghostwriters. replied stop — 469-942-8886. self-identified. Also
identifies on urban ghostwriting.

323-244-2895 on 1/25/24 - 360 digital marketing. Texter admits 360

844-965-1288 on 2/6/24 — fortune ghostwriters. Replied stop. 469-942-8886. self-identified. Website
has not privacy policy or terms and conditions. Website is the same is 360. Same background. Text,
popups.

844-714-4034 on 2/21/24 — fortune ghostwriters. Replied stop. 469-942-8886. self-identified
833-786-1882 on 3/14/24 — urban ghostwriters. Replied Stop. 469-942-8886. Self-identified
844-730-4398 on 5/9/24 - fortune ghostwriters. 469-942-8886. Self-identified

866-985-7192 on 6/7/24 — fortune ghostwriters. 469-942-8886.

323-536-8101 on 6/12/24 - Falcon ghostwriting. Replied stop

323-285-3267 on 5/9/24 & 6/18/24 — Oscar Ghostwriting. Texter admits 360. Told to stop texting me.
844-981-2262 on 6/19/24 — Nexus ghostwriters. replied stop. 346-444-9549 different sites
877-413-5480 on 7/3/24 — Nexus ghostwriters. replied stop 346-444-9549 different sites
877-356-832 on 7/5/24 — fortune ghostwriter. Replied stop. 469-942-8886. Different site
855-657-1294 on 7/21/24 — essential ghostwriting. Replied stop. Self-identified. 888-422-6162
714-439-9637 on 7/24/24 — Oscar ghostwriting. Self-identified.

888-671-3458 on 9/12/24 — bookwriting castle. Self-identified. 888-422-6162

833-659-6094 on 9/13/24 - bookwriting castle. Self-identified 888-422-6162

855-642-9795 on 9/17/24 — fortune ghostwriters. 469-942-8886

14. Some texts featured generic links to the Defendant’s websites and were soliciting ghostwriting
services. Some had branded links.
15. When the text featured opt out language, and not all did as is required under the TCPA, the
Plaintiff would reply “STOP”, yet the texts kept coming.
COMMON FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS
16. All of the texts at issue were made on by or behalf of, for the benefit of, or with the knowledge
and with the approval of the Defendant.
17. Rather than adhere to the requisite rules regarding obtaining consent prior to engaging in
telemarketing and abstaining from the use of an ATDS, Defendant repeatedly place texts to

consumers who have never provided consent (either orally or in writing) to receive such texts.



Case 3:25-cv-00907-E-BT Document 3  Filed 04/11/25 Page 50f 10 PagelD 9

18.

19.

20.

By placing the texts without first obtaining prior express written consent, the telemarketing
license and with pre-recorded messages, Defendant plainly violates the TCPA, 47 U.S.C. § 227,

et seq, and TX 305.

By making unauthorized telemarketing text, Defendant have caused the Plaintiff actual harm.
This includes loss of productivity, the aggravation, nuisance and invasions of privacy that result
from the receipt of such calls. This is in addition to the wear and tear on his telephone,
consumption of battery life, lost ability to place outgoing calls or texts and other interruption in
use, cellular minutes, loss of value realized for the monies he paid to his carrier for the receipt
of such calls, and other diminished use, enjoyment, value, and utility of their cellphones and
cellphone plans. Robocalls take actual time to deal with and lost time is a real injury. Plaintiff is
a custom jeweler and many time the phone rings while he is designing a piece of jewelry. Not
only is this annoying. But many times, he will lose where he is in the design as he must let go of
his mouse. He also loses his track of thinking.
Furthermore, Defendant (or a third-party acting on their behalf and for their benefit) sent the
texts knowing that they trespassed against and interfered with Plaintiff’s use and enjoyment of,
the ability to access his telephone, including the related data, software, applications, and
hardware components. As such, Defendant not only invaded the personal privacy of Plaintiff,
they also intentionally, repeatedly, and willfully violated the TCPA.
In response to Defendant’s unlawful conduct, Plaintiff files the complaint and seeks an
injunction requiring Defendant and its proxies to cease all unsolicited telephone calling
activities to consumers as complained of herein and an award of statutory damages to the
Plaintiff, together with costs, and pre- and post-judgment interest.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

Violation of 47 U.S.C. § 227(b)(1)(A)
Telephone Consumer Protection Act
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Plaintiff incorporates the foregoing allegations as if fully set forth herein. Using an ATDS, the
Defendant, or its proxy, texted the Plaintiff with the Defendant’s consent, knowledge, and for
its benefit without having any consent to do so from the Plaintiff a total of 18 times. Asa
result of the damages suffered by the Plaintiff, he is entitled to recover $500 in a civil fine for
the offense. However, Plaintiff seeks treble damages of $1500 per call due to the willful
nature of these texts, coming after the Defendant had already settle a previous lawsuit for
illegal texts, under 47 U.S.C. § 227(b)(3)(C) for willful and/or knowing conduct. The texts came
from spoofed phone numbers, which is an attempt to hide their identity because they know
what they are doing is illegal. They also use various, fake business name for the same reason.
And finally, they ignore requests to stop texting.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

Violation of 47 U.S.C.. § 227(c)(3)(F)
Telephone Consumer Protection Act

Plaintiff incorporates the foregoing allegations as if fully set forth herein. The Plaintiff has been
on the National Do Not Call List since 2011 because he does not want to be called or texted by
entities who do not have his permission. Despite this, he was texted 21 times
despite filing 2 and settling 1 lawsuit with the Defendantin previous
years. Asa result of the damages suffered by the Plaintiff, he is entitled to recover $500 to
$1500 in a civil fine for each offense under 227(c)(3){5)(B). However, Plaintiff seeks treble
damages of $1500 per text due to the willful nature of these texts coming after the Defendant
had already settle a previous lawsuit for illegal texts.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

Violation of § 64.1200(d)(1)
Failure to Maintain Written Telemarketing Policy

Plaintiff incorporates the foregoing allegations as if fully set forth herein. 47 CFR 64.1200(d)(1)

requires that the Defendant have a written telemarketing policy. Defendant did not respond to
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Plaintiff's request for the DNC policy and they obviously do not think the TCPA applies to them.
Plaintiff is entitled to an award of at $500 to $1500 in damages for each such violation under 47
U.S.C. § 227(c){5)(B). Plaintiff seeks treble damages of $1500 per call due to the willful nature
of these texts coming after the Defendant had already settle a previous lawsuit for illegal texts
and their refusal to provide a Telemarketing Policy when it was requested.

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Violation of TX 305
Texas State TCPA Law

Texas Business and Commerce Code § 305.053 creates a right of action for “a person who
receives a communication that violates [the TCPA as codified at] 47 U.S.C. Section 227 [or] a
regulation adopted under that provision ... against the person who originates the
communication .... “ Tex. Bus. & Com. Code § 305.053(a). Therefore, the elements of a §
305.053 claim “correspond to the necessary elements for a TCPA claim.” Callier v.

GreenSky, Inc., No. EP-20-CV-00304-KC, 2021 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 126769, 2021 WL 2688622, at *6
(W.D. Tex. May 10, 2021). Plaintiff is entitled to an award of $500 in damages for each violation
under § 305.053(b)(1). Plaintiff seeks treble damages of $1500 per call due to the willful nature

of these texts coming after the Defendant had already settle a previous lawsuit for illegal texts .

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Violation of 47 CFR § 64.1200(d)(4)
Failure to Provide Identifying Information

Plaintiff incorporates the foregoing allegations as if fully set forth herein. 47 CFR 64.1200(d)(4)
requires that Defendant provide the called party with the name of the individual caller, the
name of the person or entity on whose behalf the call is being made, and a telephone number
or address at which the person or entity may be contacted.

Defendants texts did not fulfill this requirement 8 times. Plaintiff is entitled to an award of
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$500-1500 in damages for each violation. 47 U.S.C. § 227(c)(5)(B). Plaintiff seeks treble
damages of $1500 per call due to the willful nature of these texts coming after the Defendant
had already settle a previous lawsuit for illegal texts and not self-identifying is a conscious
choice that is made when these texts are created and sent.

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Violation of § 64.1200(d)(1)
Failure to Train Telemarketing Personnel

Plaintiff incorporates the foregoing allegations as if fully set forth herein. 47 CFR
64.1200(d)(2) requires that Defendants train their personnel engaged in telemarketing on
the written policy and the existence of the Do Not Call Policy. Defendants did not do so,
resulting in violations against Plaintiff. Plaintiff is entitled to an award of at least $500 in
damages for each such violation. 47 U.S.C. § 227(c)(5)(B). However, in light of Defendant’s

willful nature of the offense, treble damages of $1500 are more than appropriate.

Prayer For Relief

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff Lucas Horton prays for judgment against the Defendant as follows:

A.

An injunction enjoining the Defendant and their affiliates from engaging in the unlawful

conduct set herein;

B.

C.

equity: and

An award of $1500 for 18 of the texts that violate the First Cause of Action.
An award of $1500 for the 21 texts that violated the Second Cause of Action.
An award of $1500 for the 21 texts that violated the Third Cause of Action.
An award of $1500 for the 21 texts that violated the Fourth Cause of Action.
An award of $1500 for the 8 texts that violated the Fifth Cause of Action.

An award of $1500 for the 21 texts that violated the Sixth Cause of Action.

An award to the Plaintiff of interest, costs and attorney’s fees, as allowed by law and
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Such further relief as the Court deems necessary, just, and proper.
Demand For Jury Trial

Please take notice that the Plaintiff demands a jury trial in this case

Dated: 4/11/2025 Respectfully submitted,

A

Page 9 of 10

Lucas Horton
lukeduke365@yahoo.com
1202 Stratford Dr
Richardson, TX 75080
Tel: (214) 909-3341
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AO 440 (Rev. 12/09) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the
Northern District of Texas

Lucas Horton

Plaintiff
V. Civil Action No. 3:25-cv-00907

360 Digital Marketing, LLC

N N N N N

Defendant

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address) 360 Digital Marketing

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:  Lucas Horton

lukeduke365@yahoo.com
1202 Stratford Dr.
Richardson, TX 75080
(214) 909-3341

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date: 04/11/2025

Signature of Clerk or Dgputy Clerk
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Civil Action No. 3:25-cv-00907

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (1)

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date)

(O 1 personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

Oon (date) ; or

(3 I left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)

, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

O I served the summons on (name of individual) , who is

designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ;or
(3 I returned the summons unexecuted because ;or
(3 Other (specify):
My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ 0.00

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:

Server's signature

Printed name and title

Server's address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:
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